
PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE 
VISITS

THURSDAY
18 JANUARY 2018

MEETING PAPERS



Published Date Not Specified

PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS
TIME: 8.50 am
DATE: Thursday 18 January 2018
VENUE: Chairman's Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N G A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Members Site Visit (Pages 1 - 10) Sarah Pearse

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr David Brown, 
Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Graham Morgan, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Keith Rippington, 
Cllr Steve Robinson, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines and 
Cllr Simon Wheeler

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Nigel Roberts 01452 425201 /fax: 426790/e-mail: 
nigel.roberts@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the 
meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:nigel.Roberts@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

Member Site Visit Meeting

18th January 2018

Weather conditions:  dry; sunny blue sky; chilly 14mph westerly wind; temperature 
was 6oC.

Planning Committee Member Attendance:

Councillors:
AWFORD, Cllr Philip (Chairman)
BIRD, Cllr Robert
BROWN, Cllr David
CORDWELL, Cllr John 
FISHER, Cllr Bernard
HALE, Cllr Terry
HIRST Cllr Stephen 
MORGAN, Cllr Graham

P
Ap
P
P
P
P
Ap
Ab

PARSONS, Cllr Shaun 
PREEST Cllr Alan
RIPPINGTON Cllr Keith
ROBINSON Cllr Steve
TRACEY, Cllr Pamela
VINES, Cllr Robert
WHEELER, Cllr Simon

P*
Ap
Ap
P
Ap
P
Ab

Key: P=present, Ab=absent, Ap= Apologies *Second meeting only.

Officers in attendance: 

Sarah Pearse, (SP) Principal Planning Officer, Kevin Phillips, (KP) Team Manager, 
Marcus Sparrow, Senior Planning Officer (Case Officer) and Carrie Denness, 
Principal Lawyer.

Site 1: Planning Application 13/0042/STMAJW by Bristol Clay Shooting for  the 
importation of soils and sub soils to create noise attenuation bunds 
associated with clay pigeon shooting and associated landscape works on land 
adjacent to Folly Farm, Kingswood, Wotton under Edge, Gloucestershire GL12 
7QX.

Case Officer (CO): Sarah Pearse

Members were joined on site by Mr and Mrs Padfield, from Bristol Clay Shooting, 
Dave Darlow (Hillesley & Tresham Parish Council) and Mary Leonard (Kingswood 
Parish Council).

Start Time: 10:15am

Officer Report

SP introduced those officers present. Procedural notes for conducting MSV were 
read out to those present. The  officer’s report was read out including background to 
the judicial review. SP described the site and location and explained the extent of the 
proposed operation over two adjoining fields. SP pointed out the route of the existing 
public footpath that followed the hedge line and showed members a plan with the 
route of public footpath. SP read out the grounds for peoples objections and the 
reasons given for those in support of the proposal. Consultee comments were read 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



2

out, and SP explained that insufficient technical information had been submitted to 
adequately demonstrate the effectiveness of the noise attenuation created by the 
proposed bunds. SP showed members a plan containing the location and layout of 
the proposed bunds, the proposed access and existing footpath.

Members’ questions:

Cllr Vines asked if the proposed bunds would be landscaped, to which SP replied 
that they would.

Cllr Robinson asked how many trip generations would be generated by the proposed 
importation of material. SP replied that there would be 6 vehicles in and out of the 
site, six days a week over an 18 month/ 2 year period.

Cllr Brown asked if objectors and consultees were re-consulted following the last 
occasion when the application was heard at Planning Committee. SP confirmed that 
they were.

Other questions:

Mary Leonard from Kingswood Parish Council stated that the parish did not feel that 
the proposed bunds would be effective enough to enable the proposed activity to 
meet noise limits. Furthermore, the parish don’t agree to the proposed 8am to 6pm 
timescales.

Dave Darlow is of the opinion that the proposed bunds are insufficient and that noise 
and safety concerns had not been adequately addressed. Mr Darlow expressed 
concern about pellets and broken clays falling across existing public footpath. SP 
remarked to members that it is not illegal to shoot over a footpath provided there are 
marshals operating during a shoot and that markers are erected prior to any shoot.

In his capacity as local member Cllr Cordwell expressed concern over the intended 
haul route, the timings of vehicle movements and the need to avoid peak times. Cllr 
Cordwell also commented that the proximity of surrounding hills would bounce the 
sound around.

Cllr Fisher asked if there were any other managed shoots in the area, to which Cllr 
Cordwell replied that there were further down the valley.

Cllr Vines asked if the proposed bunds formed part of the original permission that 
was quashed at judicial review, to which SP replied that they were.

Other Notes:

SP noted that the land to which the application relates slopes down towards the east.

Members returned to the bus and left the site at 10.53 am to travel to Fourways 
Farm, Stroud.

Page 2



3

Site 2: Planning Application 17/0082/STMAJW by Dr. Watson and S Williams  
for  the change of use of agricultural building to Use Class B2 and installation 
of proposed incinerator for the disposal of equine carcases on land at 
Fourways Farm, Waterlane, Oakridge, Stroud, GL6 7PH.

Case Officer (CO): Marcus Sparrow

Members were joined on site by the Applicant Dr. Tim Watson and his agent, Mr 
Malcolm Hunt. Councillor Parsons arrived on site.

The MSV group stood within the building that will house the incinerator for the CO 
presentation. The incinerator unit was within the building but not connected and no 
flue had been installed. The case officer described the site and the surroundings 
pointing out neighbouring properties, the public right of way (PRoW), and the site 
access.

Members Questions:

Cllr Fisher asked whether the equipment had scrubbing facilities to ensure clean 
emissions.

Dr. Watson explained that the afterburner gets rid of smells and pollutants and there 
is no requirement for an Environment Agency permit. He also advised that the main 
chamber doesn’t fire up until the afterburner gets to 850 degrees. The proposal 
would be subject to strict regulation and certification by the Animal and Plant Health 
Agency (APHA). 

Cllr Vines asked how the carcases would be transported, and would any be 
delivered or brought to the site by the owners.

The CO explained that transport of the carcases would be by a 4WD vehicle and a 
leek proof horse box, and showed a photograph of the vehicle. The horse box was 
stored in the building. 

Dr. Watson explained that all carcases would be collected.

Cllr Robinson asked where the closest incinerator was.

Dr. Watson explained that the only facility for equine disposal was at Fosse Cross 
where they offered an ashes back service, which is much more expensive. There is 
a pet crematorium for domestic pets in Tewkesbury, but larger animals are collected 
and taken to a facility in Cambridge.

Cllr Parsons asked about alternative methods of disposal such as hunt kennels.

Dr. Watson explained that he euthanizes with an injection. Injected animals cannot 
be fed to other animals. Many fallen equines are stored, bulked up and transported 
to Cambridge for disposal.

Page 3



4

Cllr Parsons asked how a carcass would be loaded into the horse box.

Dr. Watson explained that they would use a winch to load a carcass into the 
converted horse box. The horse box would reverse into the incinerator building 
where the carcass would be unloaded.

Mr Hunt explained that the incinerator, loading and unloading would not be visible 
from the public right of way.

The CO pointed out the internal drainage system for the building. There were 
drainage channels and material was collected in a sump. Any waste water is then 
pumped out and fed into the afterburner and evaporated. There is little or no leakage 
from the carcases unless there is an injury.

Cllr Hale asked what happens to the ash produced.

Dr. Watson explained that there is approximately 7kg of non-hazardous ash and 
bone pieces left after incineration. It is removed into a sealed bin, collected by a 
contractor and taken to landfill. 

Cllr Fisher asked whether ashes were given back.

Dr. Watson said that there are no proposals to return ashes. A cremulator would be 
required to grind larger fragments to ash. Cremulators are noisy and are not 
proposed for this site.

Members moved outside of the building to view the external appearance of the 
building and where the CO pointed out other salient features such as the likely 
position of the flue.

Cllr Hale asked about the collection of stock.

Dr. Watson explained that Waterlane Equine Vets is an ambulatory equine practice 
that only collect stock from client’s premises. The practice at Fourways Farm 
consists of an office and laboratory with no surgery. No animals are treated on site.

Members were shown the position of the access track and bridleway on a map.

Whilst Members were on site, a peaceful group of objectors gathered on the PRoW. 
At the close of the meeting, the MSV lead officer welcomed the objectors and briefly 
explained what Members had been looking at and that the MSV would now travel by 
coach through the Hamlet of Waterlane. The public were thanked for their 
attendance and invited to attend the Planning Committee on the 25th January.

Close of meeting: 12:15

Sarah Pearse
19/01/2018

Page 4



2018 Extra Objections and responses

Objections

34. The Applicant has not followed the advice of his own Solicitor in that he has offered no further 
analysis on the effectiveness of the bunds.
- We have responded to this in a previous correspondent.  No theoretical study would conclusively 
prove what level would be in reality achieved.  Three diffirent noise consultants have said we can 
achieve the desired level. Albeit the last one who said WITH conditions

35. The bunds as outlined in the various plans submitted by the Applicant do not allow for sufficient 
space for shooting ranges to meet the CPSA regulation.
- A Senior Safety Range Officer from the CPSA was consulted and submitted a letter stating that 
the bunds are accurate (all this is in the report)

36. The addition of the small bore shooting indicates that the “down the line” ranges would not 
meet the CPSA requirements for competitive shooting.
- The rrange in question could be used for either activity.  We are not removing the DTL layout but 
adding a small bore rifle range for diversity.

37. For small bore shooting, the bunds would not be needed, a simple low bank would suffice that 
could easily be removed by the Applicant at a later date to restore the land to its current state.
- The small bore rifle range association (SBRA) states the safety backstops needed and these are the 
same as the bunds in the application.  To say a low backdrop is adequate is nonsense.  The low back 
drop would not be unacceptable for either the SBRA or Police. For an objector who is keen on 
SAFETY to state the above is ridiculous.  SBRA bund heights have been submitted.

38. The applicant has exceeded the 28 days shooting and enforcement action is being sought 
through Stroud District Council.
- This is untrue and we are currently in contact with Stroud District Council regarding the matter 
and no action is being taken by SDC

39. No evidence of the Police Safety reports has been submitted in support of the application. Such 
reports indicating that it is acceptable to allow overshooting of private land would need to be 
escalated to a higher authority.
- The police do not get involved in safety reports for either clay pigeon shooting or small bore rifle 
shooting.  No such report exists to furnish the council with.

40. As the site is so very obviously not suitable for Clay Pigeon shooting, it follows that if allowed, 
it would in reality simply be for the creation of a very lucrative tip.
- The site is obviously suitable as we have been operating on the site for the past 12 years.  Had the 
complainants not applied for a Noise Abatement Notice on the site.  The bunding would not be 
necessary.  However as the notice was sought the bunds were applied for to reduce the noise.  The 
above comment is ludicrous.

41. The reason that there have been no complaints by local residents is because prior to this 
application shooting days were attended by between 50 and 75 shooters, each shooting either 50 
cartridges or in some cases 100. In addition to the sheer quantity, some shooters insisted in using 
very high power cartridges which made significantly more noise. This resulted in the noise 
abatement notice.
- Since furnishing the council with the dates we have shot at the site since 2013.  There has been a 
complaint to Stroud district council stating we are overshooting the 28 days per year.  Up until we 
submitted these dates there had been no complaints.  

42. Many documents are 4 years old, and official consultees comments are 4 years old as well.

Page 5



- The consultee reports are still adequate as the planning application hasn’t changed since 2013 to 
now.  Neither has the site or the surrounding area.  Therefore the age of the reports is irelevant

43. Highway consultations appear to be particularly 'old' and completed by the in house 
Development control highways section of Glos CC, and not the 'nuts and bolts', 'on the ground' 
highway department of Glos CC. The Glos CC PROW dept. were not consulted.
- The application has been in the domain since 2013.  The local parish councils and councillors have 
known about the application since 2013 too.  Infact we attended a Kingswood parish council 
meeting where we discussed with them the concerns over the highways and agreed with them 
conditions.  These were added as an amendment to planning condition 8 (operating hours) of the 
2015 committee report.  Highways were consulted and were satisfied and so were the PROW 
officers. 

44. In the recent past I have struggled to negotiate CKD 44 on a firing day and other days, I confirm 
I have not seen any Marshals; warning signs; alarms; whatever.
- All shooting points shoot AWAY from any PROW and no fallout (shot or clay) can land on or 
over the PROW.  With that said as NO shooting takes place ON or OVER the PROW, there is no 
need for Marshals/warning signs/alarms etc. As we are present on shoot days I can confirm that no 
one has walked the footpath on any shoot day and this is a total fabrication.

45. The submitted plans are very poor, with large areas of draughtsman’s licence, especially over 
the location of the footpaths relative to the shooting areas, with no north pointers.
-  There are North points on the plans and the footpaths are clearly marked on the plans in the 
correct place. 

46. The site is ill kept with large piles of shooting debris, and CKD 44 has been up to very recently 
totally obstructed in the north easterly direction, plus there NO way marks on site.
- There are no piles of shooting debris on the footpaths and the footpaths are passable.  There were 
way marks installed several years ago by the footpath people.  

Comments 42 – 46

These comments relate to Mr Christopher Dunns objections on the planning portal. 2018

Mr Dunn is a Kingswood Parish Councillor and has had access to the planning application since it 
was first submitted in 2013.  Mr Dunn was in attendance when we went to the Kingswood Parish 
Council meeting and agreed the amendment of the operating hours etc. Mr Dunn did not make 
complaints about the original planning application.

Page 6



Points regarding site visit.

Ms M Leonard (Kingswood Parish Council representative) raised the point of lorry 
movements during peak times and said it was a concern to the Parish Council.
We would like it noted that Ms Leonard KNOWS that we agreed with them the change in 
operating hours (as per the addendum to the committee report 2015) and this still stands 
and is documented in the current planning details (see below) Please also see attached 
scan of said report.

Extract taken from 2018 planning meeting documentation

Highways Concerns The council discussed the proposed route which they understand would 
come through Kingswood. Councillors had concerns on the implications that transferring the 
soils through the village of Kingswood would have. Councillors recognised that there was no 
easy route to the site as there were pinch points from the direction of Kingswood and 
Hillesley. Councillors noted that there had been problems with the transfer of soils from the 
Chestnut Park Estate and wish to avoid the problems that were experienced there which 
necessitated daily police involvement. Concerns on the access to the site and the possibility of 
lorries waiting for access were discussed as this would narrow the road and cause a hazard. 
All of the concerns raised would be worse during the busy commuting period. The application 
stated that the proposed time would be 0800hrs to 1800hrs Monday to Friday and 0800hrs to 
0100hrs on Saturday. However the Applicant has indicated that they would be happy to 
consider amending the transport time to avoid the busy period and would agree to change the 
times from 0800hrs to 0900hrs. The council considered that the vehicle movements should 
take place between 0900hrs and 1700hrs. Consideration should be given to the avoidance of 
the school bus and school run in the afternoon. Consultation with the local police should be 
sought on the highways implications of this application as it would be a police matter if issues 
were to occur as a result of it. Kingswood Parish Council would like the highways issues 
raised by the council and the community to be considered and managed either by condition or 
with the agreement of the Applicant. If the issues are not addressed the council would 
reconsider its response to this application.

Further consultation response dated 15th November 2017
Kingswood Parish Council viewed this application mindful that it was an application to 
transfer soils and to build noise attenuation bunds and not on the rights of the shoot to take 
place. Kingswood Parish Council has reviewed all of the additional application and has the 
following comment to make.
The applicant had agreed to amend the operating times for the transfer of the soils to take 
account of the concerns raised by the parish council in connection with the highways. The 
parish council are disappointed that the applicant has not followed through and made the 
amendments to the application. Due to this the parish council wishes to change its stance 
from a comment to an objection. All previous comments remain valid.

We would like it noted that we have infact agreed to impose a condition on the times vehicles 
would be travelling through Kingswood and that Ms Leonard and the parish council have not 
read fully the details which shows this (see below and attached scanned document) And due 
to this the above statement is a complete untrue fact and needs to be addressed.

Extract from Planning Committee meeting documentation 2018

7.43 The Applicant has agreed to the imposition of a planning condition that would avoid 
peak and school times.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10


	Agenda
	1 Members Site Visit
	2018 Extra Objections and  responses
	Points regarding site visit  18.01.18
	Planning addendum 2015


